
Page 1 of 4 

PROCEEDINGS OF THE BROWN COUNTY HUMAN SERVICES BOARD 
 

Pursuant to Section 19.84 Wis. Stats, a regular meeting of the Brown County Human Services 
Board was held on Thursday, March 13, 2025, at Brown County Sophie Beaumont Building, 
Boardrooms A & B; 111 N Jefferson Street; Green Bay, WI 54301 

 
Present: Supervisor Tom Lund; Supervisor Dan Theno (arrived at 5:48); Supervisor Ross 

Toellner; Sarah Beckman; Lori Blakeslee; Jean Marsch; Laura McCoy 

Excused: Michael Conley-Kuhagen  
 

Also Present: Erik Pritzl, Executive Director  
Kara Gruber, Hospital & Nursing Home Administrator 
Jenny Hoffman, Community Services Administrator  
Eric Johnson, Finance Manager 
Chelsey Groessl, Economic Support Services Manager 
Cathy Foss, Office Manager 
  

 
 
1. Call Meeting to Order 

The meeting was called to order by Supervisor Tom Lund at 5:00 pm.  
 
2. Approve / Modify Agenda 

TOELLNER / McCOY moved to approve the agenda for the March 13, 2025 Human Services Board 
Meeting. Voice vote taken. Motion carried unanimously without abstentions. 
 

3. Welcome Citizen Board Member, Ms. Lori Blakeslee 
 
4. Approve Minutes of January 9, 2025 Human Services Board Meeting 

BECKMAN / TOELLNER moved to approve the minutes dated January 9, 2025. Voice vote taken. 
Motion carried unanimously without abstentions. 

 
5. Public Comment 

No members of the public chose to attend the meeting. 
 

6. Presentation on Medicaid and BadgerCare 
Chelsey Groessl, Economic Support Services Manager, was introduced. She provided an overview of 
Brown County’s Economic Support program area especially the areas of Medicaid and BadgerCare.  

 
Presentation slides are attached to the minutes. 
 

7. Executive Director Report 
Executive Director Erik Pritzl discussed items from his February report, sharing some key activities he 
participated in over the last month. 
 
Sobriety Treatment Assisted Recovery (STAR) Program 
Pritzl, along with other staff from Brown County, met with Winnebago County’s Sheriff’s Office regarding 
recovery services within their jail for substance use. An outside recovery provider works with individuals 
who apply to live within a separate jail pod. This grant-funded program provides recovery-based 
services along with peer coaching, and then when individuals leave, they move to a recovery 
house/sober living.  
 
Secure Residential Care Center for Children & Youth (SRCCCY) 
Pritzl and a few staff toured the yet to be opened, SRCCCY in Racine County which is targeted to open 
May 2025. This facility is for short-term secured detention, and long-term residential treatment. Brown 



Brown County Human Services Board 
Meeting Minutes from March 13, 2025 

Page 2 of 4 

County is contracting with them for two beds to use as an alternative to Lincoln Hills. The housing is 
well designed, there are classrooms, as well as vocational areas, a gym and outdoor green space. 

 
Emergency Support 
Our department has been meeting with key sheltering partners like the Salvation Army, Syble Hopp, 
ADRC, Red Cross, and others in advance of the NFL Draft in case something like a major weather 
event should happen. 

 
Governor Evers’ Proposed 2025-2027 Budget 
There are many beneficial items to our department outlined in the Governor’s budget. In the budget, 
the Department of Youth Corrections rate is proposed to stay flat, being supported by general purpose 
revenue (GPR). There are increases to allocations/family aids, community support program, and 
others.  
 
Additionally, we plan to attend Wisconsin Counties Association’s Human Services Day at the Capitol 
on March 27. We will meet with legislators and share the impact of changes to the budget, etc. 
 
Domestic Violence Court Docket 
This is not a treatment court, but a consolidated/integrated docket. Individuals would not have multiple 
appearances; it will be with one judge. For example, a restraining order case, with a civil case and a 
criminal case – these would all go before the one judge. We looked at Winnebago County in Rockford, 
Illinois. After visiting, court officials are working on processes to streamline the dockets with a June 1 
target date to start. 
 
McCOY / MARSCH moved to receive and place on file the Executive Director report for March 2025. 
Voice vote taken. Motion carried unanimously without abstentions. 

 
8. Community Services Administrator Report 

Community Services Administrator Jenny Hoffman provided a verbal report.  
 
Birth to 3 Request for Proposal (RFP) 
Three applications were submitted, a team of individuals scored the applications, and the contract was 
awarded to Aspiro — a long-standing provider within the Birth to 3 program. Brown County will still have 
oversight and responsibility for the program, but one single entity will run it. We are working to ensure 
a smooth transition with communications being sent this week to families with contact information, etc.  
 
March Social Worker Appreciation Month 
Our department has over 175 social workers and case managers. We recognize and appreciate them 
for the passionate, hard work they do daily.  
 
Outpatient Clinic 
The Outpatient Clinic is required to do satisfaction surveys. For many years, the surveys were 
completed on paper and had low results. We recently moved to an electronic version, and it is going 
well. In the last part of 2024, we had approximately 70 responses with comments. 
 
Emergency Support Function 6 (ESF 6) 
We are doing a lot of planning for the NFL Draft. We work closely with Red Cross in the case of incidents 
like apartment fires, floods, etc. to set up a shelter. Typically, Red Cross takes the lead, however, a 
group of our staff is trained to assess needs, assist with shelter operations, etc. Normally shelters are 
set up at churches or schools. Green Bay Public Schools has been a great partner – we have used 
Preble High School as a flood event shelter. 

 
THENO / TOELLNER moved to receive and place on file the Community Services Administrator report 
for March 2025. Voice vote taken. Motion carried unanimously without abstentions. 

  



Brown County Human Services Board 
Meeting Minutes from March 13, 2025 

Page 3 of 4 

 
9. CTC Administrator Report including NPC Monthly Report 

Hospital and Nursing Home Administrator, Kara Gruber covered items from her report. 
 

Nicolet Psychiatric Center (NPC) 
A Table of Organization (TO) request went before the County Board in January to increase wages for 
the Certified Occupational Therapist Assistant (COTA) positions; and all vacant positions (many vacant 
for over a year) have been filled.   
 
We are continuing to work on safety and security assessments within the unit. Through the budget 
process, we are investing in upgrading the furniture to be environment-specific to an inpatient setting; 
for example, furniture that is weighted, making it difficult to move.  
 
Bayshore Village Nursing Home (BSV) 
In January, Bayshore Village received their letter of compliance following their survey in December 
2024. We continue to report on the proposed staffing mandate; however, there are no clear changes 
to that, but we expect changes or potential removal of the mandate.  
 
MARSCH / TOELLNER moved to receive and place on file the CTC Administrator Report for January 
& February 2025. Voice vote taken. Motion carried unanimously without abstentions. 

 
10. Financial Report for Community Treatment Center and Community Services 
 a. February 2025 
 b. March 2025 
 
 Finance Manager Eric Johnson distributed and highlighted items from his March report. The Business 

Operations Division is in the process of closing the books for January and February.  
 

Community Treatment Center (CTC) 
Personnel data for the year through March 1 is a slightly over the budget at approximately $34,000. 
This is due to overtime costs to fill open shifts as well as higher fringe benefit costs. The census at CTC 
is solid for Bayshore Village and Nicolet Psychiatric Center, however, a little under budget at Bay 
Haven. 

 
Community Services (CS) 
Through March 1, Community Services is running below budget favorably by approximately $45,000.  

 
McCOY / TOELLNER moved to receive and place on file the Financial Reports for Community 
Treatment Center and Community Services for February and March 2025. Voice vote taken. Motion 
carried unanimously without abstentions. 
 

11. Statistical Reports a, b, & c 
 a. Monthly CTC Data – Bay Haven Crisis Diversion/Nicolet Psychiatric Center/Bayshore Village 
   i. January 2025 
   ii. February 2025 

 b. Child Protective Services – Child Abuse/Neglect Report 
   i. January 2025 
   ii. February 2025 
 c. Monthly Contract Update 
   i. February 2025 
   ii. March 2025 
  



Brown County Human Services Board 
Meeting Minutes from March 13, 2025 

Page 4 of 4 

 
12. Request for New Non-Contracted Provider & New Provider Contract 

THENO / McCOY moved to suspend rules and take items #11 a, b & c and #12 a & b together. Voice 
vote taken. Motion carried unanimously without abstentions. 

 a. February 2025   
 b. March 2025 
 

BECKMAN / MARSCH moved to receive and place on file Statistical Reports #11 a, b & c and #12 a 
& b. Voice vote taken. Motion carried unanimously without abstentions. 

 
13. Adjourn Meeting: 

BECKMAN / THENO moved to adjourn. Voice vote taken. Motion carried unanimously without 
abstentions. 
  
Chair, Supervisor Tom Lund adjourned the meeting at 6:26 pm.  
 
Next Meeting: Thursday, April 10, 2025 at 5:00 pm 

 Sophie Beaumont Building; Boardroom A 
 111 N. Jefferson Street; Green Bay, WI 54301. 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
Catherine Foss 
Office Manager 



Brown County 
Human Services Board Meeting

3/13/2025

Economic Support Services

           

Application Methods 

Online
Phone
Mail / Fax
In person 



General Eligibility Guidelines

All programs have both non-financial and 
financial eligibility rules

Applicants/Members must provide both 
information and verification

Incomplete information and/or failure to 
provide verification results in denial

Application processing timeline

Healthcare Programs:
Medicaid



Medicaid

Wisconsin Medicaid is a state/federal program 
that provides health coverage for Wisconsin 
residents who are elderly, blind, or disabled

Medicaid is also known as Medical Assistance, MA, 
and Title 19

Medicaid has different subprograms:
Full-Benefit EBD Medicaid Programs
Full-Benefit Long-Term Care Programs
Limited-Benefit EBD Medicaid Programs

Who Is Eligible For Medicaid?

Adults ages 65 years and older

People who are blind

People who are disabled

Disability and blindness 
determinations are made by the 
Disability Determination Board



Medicaid Non-Financial Rules

Be elderly, blind or disabled

Be a Wisconsin resident 

Be a U.S. citizen or qualifying immigrant

Cooperate with medical support liability

Cooperate with third-party liability

Provide a social security number or proof 
of application

Pay a premium if required

Pay a cost share if required

Medicaid Financial Rules

Group sizes for income testing are 
either 1 or 2 individuals

Most earned and unearned income 
types are counted

Some income deductions are 
permitted based on program

The group must be within the 
appropriate asset limit



SSI-Related Medicaid Limits

Medicaid Asset Limits

Group Size

1 $2,000.00 

2 $3,000.00 

Medicaid Income Limits

Group Size Categorically Needy SSI-Related Medically Needy SSI-Related (100% FPL)

1 $1,050.78 $1,304.17

2 $1,582.05 $1,762.50

Medicaid Data for
Brown County

386 367
430 410

317

810

984
1062

1293
1242

1536

1837

2010 2045

1705

1440 1456 1462 1421
1340

776
702

640 640
720

300

500

700

900

1100

1300

1500

1700

1900

2100

2300

June 2020 June 2021 June 2022 June 2023 June 2024

Members Certified by Brown County
Medicaid Category for June of Each Year

Institutionalized MAPP SSI-Related Waiver Medicare Beneficiaries

Source: Wisconsin Medicaid – ForwardHealth Enrollment Data



Healthcare Programs:
BadgerCare Plus

BadgerCare Plus

A state and federal program that provides 
health coverage for low-income Wisconsin 
residents

Funded by Medicaid (Title 19) and the Children’s 
Health Insurance Program (CHIP or Title 21)

BadgerCare Plus is a full coverage health care 
plan but also encompasses some limited 
coverage health care plans as well



Who Is Eligible For 
BadgerCare Plus?

Children younger than 19 years old
Parents/caretaker relatives of 
children younger than 19 years old
Individuals who are pregnant  
Former Foster Care Youth younger 
than 26 years old
Adults ages 19 – 64 who are not 
receiving Medicare and do not have 
dependent children

BCP Non-Financial Rules
Be a Wisconsin resident 

Be a U.S. citizen or qualified immigrant

Provide Social Security number (with some 
exceptions)

Supply required information and verification 
within the required time frame

Cooperate with establishing medical support and 
Third-Party Liability

Meet health insurance coverage requirements



BCP Financial Rules

For income testing purposes, groups are 
formed using Modified Adjusted Gross Income 
tax filing rules.

Financial eligibility is based on the group’s 
expected monthly income. 

Assets are not considered when determining 
eligibility for BadgerCare Plus.

All taxable income is counted.  

BadgerCare Plus Income 
Limits



BadgerCare Plus Data for 
Brown County

6,799

9,581

11,273
12,177

8,067

19,304
19,948

19,230
18,361

17,715

4,122

7,266

10,928

13,036

9,797

6,527 6,962 6,789 6,518
5,171

1,020 1,400 1,676 1,441 837
40 39 38 32 51

0

5,000

10,000

15,000

20,000

25,000

June 2020 June 2021 June 2022 June 2023 June 2024

Members Certified by Brown County
BadgerCare Plus Categories for June of each Year

Childless Adults Children Income Extensions Parents/Caretakers Pregnant Individuals Former Foster Care Youth

Source: Wisconsin Medicaid – ForwardHealth Enrollment Data

What’s the Difference between      
Medicaid and BadgerCare Plus?

Medicaid provides 
health coverage 
for Wisconsin 
residents who are 
elderly, blind, or 
disabled.

BadgerCare Plus is a 
type of Medicaid 
program which 
provides health care 
coverage to low-
income Wisconsin 
residents age 0 – 64.



For More Information

Chelsey Groessl, Economic Support Services Manager 

Email: Chelsey.Groessl@browncountywi.gov

Phone:  (920) 448-6460

DHS Website: 
https://www.dhs.wisconsin.gov/forwardhealth/resources.htm


	2025.03.13_HS Board Mtg Minutes
	ES Presentation 2 slides per page

